
1 
 

MINUTES OF 
FAIRFAX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2012 
                                          
                               
PRESENT: Walter L. Alcorn, Commissioner At-Large 

  Frank A. de la Fe, Hunter Mill District 
    Jay P. Donahue, Dranesville District 
    Earl L. Flanagan, Mount Vernon District       
    Janet R. Hall, Mason District 
    James R. Hart, Commissioner At-Large 
    Ellen J. Hurley, Braddock District 
    Kenneth A. Lawrence, Providence District 
    John L. Litzenberger, Jr., Sully District 

James T. Migliaccio, Lee District 
    Peter F. Murphy, Jr., Springfield District 
    Timothy J. Sargeant, Commissioner At-Large  
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
// 
 
The meeting was called to order at 8:27 p.m. by Chairman Peter F. Murphy, Jr. in the Board 
Auditorium of the Fairfax County Government Center, 12000 Government Center Parkway, 
Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 
 
// 
 
COMMISSION MATTERS 
 
Commissioner Sargeant MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 
CERTIFY TO THE BEST OF THEIR KNOWLEDGE, ONLY THE PUBLIC BUSINESS 
MATTER LAWFULLY EXEMPTED FROM THE OPEN MEETING REQUIREMENTS 
PRESCRIBED BY THE VIRGINIA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND ONLY THE 
MATTER IDENTIFIED IN THE MOTION TO CONVENE CLOSED SESSION WAS HEARD, 
DISCUSSED, OR CONSIDERED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION DURING THAT 
SESSION. 
 
Commissioner Litzenberger seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 11-0-1 with 
Commissioner Hall abstaining. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION AUTHORIZE THE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO RESPOND TO THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE AS DISCUSSED 
DURING THE EXECUTIVE [sic] SESSION. 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

COMMISSION MATTERS                September 27, 2012 
 
 
Commissioner Hart seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 11-0-1 with Commissioner 
Hall abstaining. 
 
 // 
 
Commissioner Hart announced that the Planning Commission's Environment Committee would 
meet in the Board Conference Room of the Fairfax County Government Center on the following 
dates: 
 

 Thursday, October 4, 2012, at 7:00 p.m.   
 Thursday, November 29, 2012, at 7:00 p.m.  

  
 // 
 
Commissioner Alcorn announced that he would be attending the Board of Supervisors’ 
Community Revitalization and Reinvestment Committee meeting on Tuesday, October 2, 2012 at 
10:00 a.m., in Conference Rooms 9/10 of the Government Center for a presentation of the 
Planning Commission’s Tysons recommendation.  
 
// 
 
Commissioner de la Fe announced his intent to defer the public hearing on SE 2012-HM-009, 
Insite Real Estate Investment Properties, LLC, originally scheduled for Wednesday, October 17, 
2012, to a date certain of Wednesday, December 5, 2012. 
 
// 
 
FS-M12-19 – CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS, 7010 Braddock Road (Phillips School)  
FSA-10-1 – SPRINT, 10690 Parkridge Boulevard (Hunter Mill District) 
 
Chairman Murphy MOVED THE APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS.  
 
Without objection, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
// 
 
SE 2012-HM-006 – TYSONS WEST RESIDENTIAL, LLC (Decision Only) (The public hearing 
on this item was held on September 20, 2012. A verbatim transcript of the decision made is in 
the date file.) 
 
Commissioner de la Fe MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF SE 2012-HM-006, SUBJECT TO THE 
DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS CONTAINED IN APPENDIX 1 OF THE STAFF REPORT. 
 
 



3 
 

COMMISSION MATTERS                September 27, 2012 
 
 
Commissioner Lawrence seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 10-0-1 with 
Commissioner Litzenberger abstaining; Commissioner Alcorn not present for the vote. 
 
// 
 
ARCHITECTURAL PLAN FOR TYSONS CORNER CENTER PHASE I RESIDENTIAL, 
HOTEL, AND PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE (Providence District) 
 
Commissioner Lawrence MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION SUPPORT THE 
PHASE I ARCHITECTURAL PLAN FOR TYSONS CORNER CENTER RESIDENTIAL, 
HOTEL, AND PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE, AS REFLECTED IN THE DRAWINGS DATED 
AUGUST 2012, SUBMITTED BY THE MACERICH CORPORATION. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioner Hart 
having recused himself from the vote. 
 
// 
 
ORDER OF THE AGENDA 
 
On behalf of Commissioner Hall, Chairman Murphy noted that there would be only one public 
hearing this evening.  
 

1. PCA 88-D-005-07 – CITYLINE PARTNERS LLC  
   RZ/FDP 2011-PR-023 – CITYLINE PARTNERS LLC 
   FDP 2011-PR-023-02 – THE ASSOCIATION FOR MANUFACTURING  
            TECHNOLOGY  

FDP 2011-PR-023-03 – CITYLINE PARTNERS LLC 
 
This order was accepted without objection. 
 
// 
 

RZ 2011-PR-023 – CITYLINE PARTNERS LLC – Appl. to rezone 
from C-3, HC, and SC to PTC, HC, and SC to permit mixed-use 
development with an overall Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 3.05. 
Located in the S.E. and S.W. quadrants of the intersection of 
Westbranch Dr. and Westpark Dr. on approx. 19.40 ac. of land. 
Comp. Plan Rec: Transit Station Mixed Use. Tax Map 29-4 ((7)) 1, 
2, 3, 5A, 9, 10, and a portion of Westbranch Dr. public right-of-way 
to be vacated and/or abandoned. (Approval of this application may 
enable the vacation and/or abandonment of portions of the public 
rights-of-way for Westbranch Dr. to proceed under Section 15.2-
2272 (2) of the Code of Virginia.) (Concurrent with FDP 2011-PR- 

 



4 
 

PCA 88-D-005-07, RZ/FDP 2011-PR-023, & FDP 2011-PR-023-03       September 27, 2012 
CITYLINE and FDP 2011-PR-023-02 – AMT  
 
 

023, FDP 2011-PR-023-02, FDP 2011-PR-023-03, and PCA 88-D-
005-07.) PROVIDENCE DISTRICT.  

 
FDP 2011-PR-023 – CITYLINE PARTNERS LLC – Appl. to 
approve the Final Development Plan for RZ 2011-PR-023 to permit 
mixed-use development. Located in the S.W. quadrant of the 
intersection of Westbranch Dr. and Westpark Dr. on approx. 5.47  
ac. of land zoned PTC. Tax Map 29-4 ((7)) 10 and a portion of 
Westbranch Dr. public right-of-way to be vacated and/or abandoned. 
(Approval of this application may enable the vacation and/or 
abandonment of portions of the public rights-of-way for Westbranch 
Dr. to proceed under Section 15.2-2272 (2) of the Code of Virginia.) 
(Concurrent with RZ 2011-PR-023, FDP 2011-PR-023-02, FDP 
2011-PR-023-03, and PCA 88-D-005-07.) PROVIDENCE 
DISTRICT.  
 
FDP 2011-PR-023-02 – THE ASSOCIATION FOR 
MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGY – Appl. to approve the  
Final Development Plan for RZ 2011-PR-023 to permit mixed-use 
development. Located approx. 350 feet to the S.E. of the intersection 
of Jones Branch Dr. and Westpark Dr. on approx. 1.84 ac. of land 
zoned PTC, HC, and SC. Tax Map 29-4 ((7)) 5A. (Concurrent with 
RZ 2011-PR-023, FDP 2011-PR-023, FDP 2011-PR-023-03, and 
PCA 88-D-005-07.) PROVIDENCE DISTRICT.  
 
FDP 2011-PR-023-03 – CITYLINE PARTNERS LLC – Appl. to 
approve the Final Development Plan for RZ 2011-PR-023 to permit 
mixed-use development. Located at the terminus of Jones Branch 
Dr. and Westpark Dr. on approx. 3.14 ac. of land zoned PTC, HC, 
and SC. Tax Map 29-4 ((7)) 1 and 2pt. (Concurrent with RZ 2011-
PR-023, FDP 2011-PR-023, FDP 2011-PR-023-02, and PCA 88-D-
005-07.) PROVIDENCE DISTRICT.  
 
PCA 88-D-005-07 – CITYLINE PARTNERS LLC – Appl. to amend 
the proffers for RZ 88-D-005 previously-approved for commercial 
development to permit deletion of 27.25 ac. of land with an overall 
Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 0.24. Located on the N. and S. sides of 
Westpark Dr., E. and W. of Westbranch Dr., bounded on the N. and 
E. by Jones Branch Dr., on approx. 85.93 ac. of land zoned C-3, HC, 
and SC. Comp. Plan Rec: Transit Station Mixed-Use and Residential 
Mixed-Use. Tax Map 29-2 ((15)) B2; 29-4 ((7)) A4, C1, C2, 1, 1A1, 
1A2, 2, 3, 5A, 6, 7A1, 7B, 8, 9, 10, and 11A. (Concurrent with RZ 
2011-PR-023, FDP 2011-PR-023, FDP 2011-PR-023-02, and FDP  

 



5 
 

PCA 88-D-005-07, RZ/FDP 2011-PR-023, & FDP 2011-PR-023-03       September 27, 2012 
CITYLINE and FDP 2011-PR-023-02 – AMT  
 
 

2011-PR-023-03.) PROVIDENCE DISTRICT. JOINT PUBLIC 
HEARING. 

 
John McGranahan, Jr., Esquire, Hunton & Williams LLP, reaffirmed the affidavits for PCA 88-
D-005-07, RZ/FDP 2011-PR-023, and FDP 2011-PR-023-03, Cityline Partners LLC, dated 
August 24, 2012. Jill Parks, Esquire, Cooley LLP, reaffirmed the affidavit for FDP 2011-PR-023-
02, The Association for Manufacturing Technology (AMT), dated August 14, 2012. There were 
no disclosures by the Commissioners. 
 
Matthew Ladd, Planning Division, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ), presented the 
staff report, a copy of which is in the date file. He noted that staff recommended approval of the 
applications. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence pointed out that the site would be developed by multiple owners. He 
also noted that the topography would be used advantageously to provide parking garages and 
other amenities, some of which might be above-grade. He then asked how, aside from the grand 
staircase, a person would reach the upper levels from the parking garage. Mr. Ladd explained 
that elevators would be available for transport to the civic area/common green. He added that 
trail connections were proposed to access the site from the neighboring property, owned by 
Lerner Enterprises. Commissioner Lawrence noted the importance of the trail connection on  
the Lerner property and pointed out that it would need to be continually assessed during the 
development of the application site. He referenced the summary conclusions and outstanding 
issues on page 61 of the staff report and pointed out that a letter from Mr. McGranahan to Mr.  
Ladd, dated September 27, 2012, a copy of which is in the date file, resolved some of those 
issues. Commissioner Lawrence announced his intent to defer the decisions only on these cases 
at the end of this public hearing to allow for the resolution of all outstanding issues.  
 
Commissioner Hart expressed concern about Proffer Number 14, Live-Work Units, saying that 
the language was too broad and permissive and suggested modifying the language to include the 
prohibition of certain by-right retail uses. He further clarified that he was concerned with the 
allowable retail in the live-work units only.   
 
Commissioner Hart also expressed concern about Proffer Number 113, Condemnation, 
particularly in light of the upcoming State Constitution referendum on Question 1, Virginia 
Eminent Domain, and suggested further review of its relevance in upcoming applications if it 
passed.  
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Flanagan, Mr. Ladd explained the proposed 
development blocks, each of whose boundaries were denoted alphabetically and depicted in the 
applicant’s Conceptual Development Plan (CDP). He also confirmed that the proffers addressed 
each block as designated. 
 
Answering questions from Commissioner Sargeant, Mr. Ladd explained that on the site of the 
proposed athletic fields, a future urban-style elementary school would occupy approximately two  



6 
 

PCA 88-D-005-07, RZ/FDP 2011-PR-023, & FDP 2011-PR-023-03       September 27, 2012 
CITYLINE and FDP 2011-PR-023-02 – AMT  
 
 
and a half acres of land. When Commissioner Sargeant asked about the staff recommendation for 
parking, as referenced in Proffer Number 85, Parking Requirements, and the first paragraph on 
page 22 of the staff report under Major Elements of the Application, Parking, Mr. Ladd 
explained that the applicant had committed to parking rates prescribed by the Planned Tysons 
Corner Urban District (PTC) Ordinance. He added that the issues regarding the LEED Gold  
pre-certification for the hotel had been resolved and the modified proffer language would be 
submitted to staff within the next week. In addition, he confirmed that Proffer Numbers 73, 
Tysons Road Fund Contribution, and 75, Additional Tysons Road Fund Contributions for  
Table 7 Improvements, were consistent with the recent recommendations by the Planning 
Commission’s Tysons Corner Committee. Commissioner Sargeant commended the applicant for 
providing Transportation Demand Management (TDM) plans and proffers written to adapt to 
changing transportation needs.  
 
When Commissioner Sargeant asked about the proposed shared energy systems, Mr. Ladd 
explained that Cityline had committed in Proffer Number 33B, Shared Energy, to evaluate at the 
time of site plan/Final Development Plan (FDP) filing the feasibility of shared energy systems 
for multiple buildings or the potential for future incorporation of buildings into a broader energy 
network. He added that Proffer Number 33A, Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure, indicated 
that a minimum of one recharging station would be provided within each block. Catherine Lewis, 
Zoning Evaluation Division, DPZ, added that staff was working closely with the Fairfax County 
Energy Efficiency Conservation Coordinating Committee to find applications in Tysons Corner 
that might be ideal for energy sharing and meeting with those applicants to discuss future 
possibilities. 
 
Commissioner Hurley questioned the County’s expectation for LEED Silver certified hotels, 
noting that surrounding jurisdictions had no such expectation. Mr. Ladd explained that the 
Tysons Corner Comprehensive Plan recommended LEED Silver certification for all commercial 
buildings. He added that LEED Gold certification, while optional, would require pre-certification 
by the applicant; however, if an applicant opted for Gold certification, no green building escrow 
would be required. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Donahue, Mr. Ladd described the applicant’s 
commitment to provide one and a half turfed and lit athletic fields, adding that the full field 
would be permanent while the half field would be temporary and sited where a future urban 
school would be constructed. He explained that Cityline had committed to early delivery of the 
fields and requested that credit for the full field be applied to its Scotts Run Station South 
rezoning applications to meet their field needs. Commissioner Donahue expressed concern that 
the PTC would fall short of the standard athletic field requirement once the half field was 
removed for the school’s construction. Mr. Ladd confirmed that the requirement would no longer 
be met, but added that early delivery of the fields would allow for a longer period of use prior to 
the school’s construction. Commissioner Donahue questioned the justification for removing 
required amenities from the PTC and stressed the importance of maintaining the integrity of the 
original plan.   
 



7 
 

PCA 88-D-005-07, RZ/FDP 2011-PR-023, & FDP 2011-PR-023-03       September 27, 2012 
CITYLINE and FDP 2011-PR-023-02 – AMT  
 
 
Answering another question from Commissioner Donahue, Mr. Ladd explained that Proffer 
Number 52, Construction of the Athletic Fields and Related Facilities, requested that no 
approvals be withheld for Blocks A, D, E, and/or F as long as the applicant obtained site plan 
approval and posted all required bonds for the athletic field improvements. He said that staff did 
not concur with this arrangement and would continue to work with the applicant during the 
deferral period.  
 
Commissioner Donahue reiterated his concern that the goal to provide a sufficient number of 
athletic fields to serve Tysons by the year 2050 would not be met if rezoning applicants were not 
required to adhere to the Plan requirements.  
 
Mr. McGranahan explained that the proposed pedestrian-oriented, mixed-use development would 
achieve the major objectives of the PTC. He said that the applicant would provide transportation 
contributions toward a Tysons-wide Transportation Association. He stated that the applicant 
worked closely with staff to expedite the construction of the athletic fields for delivery by 2015 
for use by current and future residents as the site developed. He also noted that electric vehicle 
charging stations would be available in each development block and said that the applicant 
would meet the requirements for workforce and affordable housing. Mr. McGranahan described 
the proposed access to the future Tysons Corner Metro Station, including on-site trails and 
proposed connections through the adjacent property. In addition, he described each development 
block and pointed out that the hotel proposed in Block D would be certified LEED Silver. 
Referencing Proffer Number 52, Mr. McGranahan explained that Cityline would construct the 
athletic fields, adding that the school would be built as dictated by need. He pointed out that the 
proffer also contained a contingency that if the school must be built sooner than expected, the 
applicant would provide funding to re-turf the full field, thereby doubling its prescribed time of 
use. He added that the construction of the buildings and fields would likely occur concurrently 
and said that the last sentence in the proffer was intended to prevent the discontinuation of office 
building construction if the athletic fields could not be completed. He noted that the proposed 
language would provide flexibility and would not preclude the ultimate installation of the athletic 
fields. He stated that the building in Block F was owned by AMT, who had received the required 
pre-certification for a LEED Gold-certified building. Addressing Commissioner Hart’s concerns, 
Mr. McGranahan said that the live-work units would be converted from the current proposed 
retail use as a last resort only. In addition, he pointed out that Proffer Number 14, Live-Work 
Units, required FDPA approval for any proposed uses. He also noted that Proffer Number 13, 
Condemnation, had been included in the proffers as a general standard paragraph, adding that the 
size and scope of this project would likely prevent the need for any condemnation. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence pointed out that of the total 6 acres of park/open space, only 4.4 acres 
would be public park space while the remainder would be private open space. He acknowledged 
the applicant’s request to use the athletic field credits toward a future adjacent development; 
however, he said that Commissioner Donahue’s concerns should be considered with regard to the 
issue of the half field and suggested that the applicant and staff continue to discuss possibilities 
during the deferral period. With regard to energy sharing, Commissioner Lawrence suggested 
that the applicant and staff develop proffer language to address the design of the buildings to  



8 
 

PCA 88-D-005-07, RZ/FDP 2011-PR-023, & FDP 2011-PR-023-03       September 27, 2012 
CITYLINE and FDP 2011-PR-023-02 – AMT  
 
 
allow for future modifications and/or retrofits as new energy generation techniques became 
available and more cost effective. Referencing slide 10 of Mr. McGranahan’s presentation, a 
copy of which is in the date file, Commissioner Lawrence suggested the close review of 
pedestrian access and trails to ensure that the proposed routes and trail connections would be the 
most beneficial to the residents. 
 
Commissioners Alcorn and Sargeant commended the applicant for the proposed layout of the 
site, noting the provision of city blocks, urban streetscape, and creation of a sense of place. 
 
Referencing Proffer Number 93A, under Workforce Dwelling Units, Commissioner Flanagan 
expressed concern about the consolidation and possible resulting stigma of the workforce 
dwelling units (WDU) into one building. Mr. McGranahan explained that Blocks A and E 
contained the proposed residential buildings, within which the WDUs would be dispersed. 
However, when Commissioner Flanagan asked if the proffer language would be modified to 
reflect the dispersion, Mr. McGranahan stated that the current language was written to provide 
flexibility in the dispersion of the WDUs between the residential buildings.  
 
Commissioner Alcorn noted that while he would not object to modifying the proffer language, he 
had no concerns about the placement of the WDUs and suggested that the Planning 
Commission’s Housing Committee meet to discuss this issue. 
 
Commissioner Donahue commended the applicant for the early delivery of the athletic fields, 
and reiterated his earlier remarks about the importance of ensuring that the redevelopments in 
Tysons deliver the necessary recreational facilities, including athletic fields, as envisioned in the 
adopted Comprehensive Plan for Tysons Corner. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Hart, Mr. McGranahan referenced slide 9 of his 
presentation, described the proposed pedestrian connections, and explained which trails and 
connections still required resolution. 
 
Answering a question from Commissioner Donahue, Mr. McGranahan confirmed that the 
athletic fields would be fully lit and turfed upon delivery. 
 
Chairman Murphy called for speakers from the audience but received no response; therefore,  
he noted that a rebuttal statement was not necessary. He then called for closing comments from 
staff. Ms. Lewis commended Mr. Ladd for his work on these applications, particularly in light  
of how extensive this project was.  
 
Commissioner de la Fe pointed out that the approval of these applications required several 
waivers from the Zoning Ordinance. He expressed concern about the commonality of such 
waivers and suggested a comprehensive review of the Zoning Ordinance to determine what,  
if any, changes might be necessary to accommodate future approvals in urban districts 
throughout the County. Ms. Lewis agreed and noted that the Department of Public Works  
 



9 
 

PCA 88-D-005-07, RZ/FDP 2011-PR-023, & FDP 2011-PR-023-03       September 27, 2012 
CITYLINE and FDP 2011-PR-023-02 – AMT  
 
 
and Environmental Services (DPWES) had recently hired a Tysons Corner Urban Center 
Coordinator to help coordinate and reconcile the zoning issues in these types of applications with 
the coinciding issues in the Public Facilities Manual. She also noted that DPWES might also hire 
a Site Plan Reviewer, exclusively assigned to the PTC, to assist with the zoning review process. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence commended DPWES on hiring a coordinator and emphasized the need 
to keep a close eye on development as it occurred. 
 
There were no further comments or questions from the Commission; therefore, Chairman 
Murphy closed the public hearing and recognized Commissioner Lawrence for action on these 
items. (A verbatim excerpt is in the date file.) 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Lawrence MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION DEFER THE 
DECISIONS ONLY ON PCA 88-D-005-07, RZ/FDP 2011-PR-023, FDP 2011-PR-023-02, AND 
FDP 2011-PR-023-03, CITYLINE PARTNERS, LLC, AND THE ASSOCIATION FOR 
MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGY, TO A DATE CERTAIN OF OCTOBER 17, 2012, WITH 
THE RECORD TO REMAIN OPEN FOR WRITTEN AND ELECTRONIC COMMENT. 
 
Commissioners Alcorn, Hart, and de la Fe seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 
 
// 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:27 p.m. 
Peter F. Murphy, Jr., Chairman 
Janet R. Hall, Secretary 
 
Audio and video recordings of this meeting are available at the Planning Commission Office, 
12000 Government Center Parkway, Suite 330, Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 
 

Minutes by:  Jeanette Nord 
 

Approved on:  February 7, 2013     
 
 

                    
Kara A. DeArrastia, Clerk to the  
Fairfax County Planning Commission 


